NSROC II Draft RFP Questions
1. What is the Government estimate of the release date of the RFP? 

Response:  The current schedule calls for release of the final RFP in early October, 2009.  Offerors are advised to check the NSROC II website frequently for potential updates to this schedule as it is probable the schedule will be updated to indicate an earlier release date for the final RFP.
2. The instruction in section L.13, sub factor B RTO #4 (page 116) states, "Because this RTO relates only to procurement activities, it is not necessary to include the testing and inspection processes that would normally be utilized to determine if the procured items comply with the technical specifications typically associated with the specific item."  The RTO4 Task description states that "The requirement of this RTO #4 is for the offeror to provide two Task Implementation Plans and fully burdened cost estimates that describe the procurement activities associated with the acquisition, acceptance, and placement into inventory of the raw materials and hardware necessary for there implementation of the Sounding Rockets Program for each year of the of the five year contract."
The instruction to, "not include the testing and inspection processes that would normally be utilized" conflicts with the requirement in the task description to perform the acceptance and placement into inventory.  
Please provide clarification as to what effort related to the acquisition of hardware is to be included in the task plan and costs?  
Response:  Because the Government is only providing total dollar value plug numbers and a general description of the category of hardware that will be procured under each of the two PTOs, it will not be possible for Offerors to provide hardware specific testing and inspection processes required to determine if the hardware and materials are compliant with technical specifications (which are also not provided for this RTO).  As an example, the testing and inspection process to determine compliance with technical specifications for a batch of #10 socket head cap screws will be completely different from the process utilized to accept a batch of 10 watt telemetry transmitters.  Offerors should fully describe practices within their procurement process that are common to either broad categories or all procurements (which may include things such as “seek competitive prices, evaluate proposals, inspect for damage, check for total quantity ordered, place in controlled program stockroom, etc.) and should reference where in this process the technical inspections and evaluations will occur, but descriptions of the actual testing and inspection processes for compliance with specific technical specifications (such as pull test 3% of total lot of #10 screws to verify yield and ultimate strength meet specification requirements) should not be included.
3. Will the government release the phase out plan, from the incumbent contractor, prior to release of the final RFP?  Will it be placed it in the proposal library? 

Response:  The Government does not yet have the Phase out plan for the current contract, but expects to obtain it before release of the final RFP.  Offerors interested in obtaining a copy of this plan should make a FOIA request to the Government for the document.
4. In L13 sub-factor, E a goal of 16.5% is specified for “small business” and 16.5% for the special class subset of small business.  Is the total goal to be set aside for small business 33% or 16.5%

Response:  The total small business goal is 16.5%
5. In L13 pg 121 the position descriptions are specified to be included in the Mission Suitability Volume. Will the government consider excluding the position descriptions from the page count in the Mission Suitability volume or allow them to be referenced as in the cost proposal as per section 6 attachment F?

Response:  Position Descriptions will be limited to one page each but excluded from the overall Mission Suitability Volume page limitation.

6. Will the government consider excluding key personnel resumes, including letters of commitment, from the page count?

Response:  Key personnel resumes and letters of commitment will be limited to three and one pages each respectively, but excluded from the overall Mission Suitability Volume page limitation.

7. SOW 1.1.11 ITAR and H.22 page 44.  The language noted is explicit in requiring the government to handle export and is mute on who is to handle the import licenses. Will the government also handle the import license activity?

Response:  The contractor will be responsible for all import license activity.
8. These questions pertain to SOW section 1.1.12 Office Automation Devices and Services, pages 20 and 21:

i. Will the maintenance and license costs for all software used in support of this contract be paid by the government directly or through the contractor?  If the latter, will the government provide this cost as a plug number ODC? Will these costs be covered via a PTO?
Response:  A standard suite of software is furnished by the government for each computer seat.  NASA’s current contract vehicle in place to provide this seat is the Outsourcing Desktop Initiative for NASA (ODIN). An ODIN computer seat is a bundled set of managed services that include the applicable computer hardware (CPU, monitor, keyboard, mouse), maintenance of hardware, system software, and application software; hardware replacement/refreshment, help desk services, IT security compliance, licensed software upgrades/patches; restoration of service within subscribed timeframes (2 hours to 3 business days timeframes are available), deskside assistance, and loaner equipment. Specialized desktop software such as Orcad and Solidworks will also be furnished via the ODIN contract. A listing of the specialized desktop software programs used by the current NSROC contract will be placed in the procurement library. All ODIN costs will be paid directly by the government once the Sounding Rocket Program Office approves the request. 

Maintenance and license costs, if applicable, for specialized software running on Ground Support Equipment will be the responsibility of the NSROC contractor. 

All existing specialized software and hardware will be furnished to the new NSROC contractor at contract award.

ii. What is meant by “software systems?”

Response:  Software term definitions and the standard suite of software employed by NASA are defined in NASA STD-2804. NASA STD-2805 lists computer hardware standards.

iii. What is meant by “application development? “
Response:  Software application development is the development of a software application.  Application software is any tool that functions and is operated by means of a computer, with the purpose of supporting or improving the software user's work.  In other words, it is the subclass of computer software that employs the capabilities of a computer directly and thoroughly to a task that the user wishes to perform.  Typical examples of 'software applications' are word processors, spreadsheets, media players and database applications.  The intent here is that any software developed\employed by the contractor for web based or public use has to be compliant with the referenced standards.  Sounding Rocket Program system software, such as the ACS software that will only be employed by ACS engineers, does not.

iv. If the contractor requires server type H/W for implementation of an Enterprise Management System including the WOCR, will such H/W be provided by the CNE?  If so, will the required H/W be provided as reasonably scheduled by the contractor, for both phase-in and contract activities?
Response:  It will not be a CNE service.  NASA’s current contract vehicle in place to provide server and file storage services is ODIN.  ODIN is required to provide this service in a required timeframe once the service request has been approved and funded by the government.

9. Clause E1, Acceptance Locations, refers to the delivery of items 1 – 23.  Clause F.2, Deliverable Items List, presents 22 deliverables.  

Are there 22 contractual deliverables or has the list of F.2 omitted a deliverable? 

Response:  Clause E1 will be corrected to specify 22 deliverables, consistent with the Clause F2 Deliverable Items List.

10. Section L.12(c)(4) refers to Government Property and Clause J.1 Attachment D indicates it will contain a list of IAGP. 
Does the IAGP include program consumables, e.g., EEE parts, fasteners?  When does the government intend to provide the list of IAGP?  

Response:  The list of IAGP will include all program consumables currently in Sounding Rocket Program Inventory as of the effective date of the list.  The list is currently being developed and will be provided as soon as it is completed.  The Government anticipates this will occur prior to June 1, 2009.

11. SOW  Section 1.1.1.1, Phase In, requires that the contractor shall assume full responsibility for all contractual obligations beginning with the effective date of the contract.  

What are the cost and fee approaches for missions already in progress? 

Response:  In progress missions will be assigned via individual Mission Task Orders to the successful Offeror as of the effective date of the contract.  Each Mission Task Order will stipulate the assigned Mission Complexity Level and Target Cost.  Target Costs will be developed taking into consideration the phases (i.e. SOW 2 through 4) that remain to be completed and any applicable variance factor in accordance with Section 5 of Clause J.1 Attachment F.  Fees for each transition mission will be determined in accordance with Clause J.1 Attachment B when each Mission Task Order is completed.
12. Clause J.1 Attachment H refers to “funding baskets.” 

Will the Government provide definition of and examples of funding baskets? How many funding baskets are typical over the life of a sounding rocket mission or performance task order? 
Response:  A “funding basket” is simply a funding source for an individual Task Order or a group of Task Orders.  From the perspective of the NSROC II contractor, there will only be one “funding basket” for any given Task Order.  An example of a “funding basket” could be the Department of Defense for a mission being conducted by NASA to support of one their programs.  Another would be the NASA Sounding Rockets Program for the totality of all assigned Mission Task Orders that comprise the Sounding Rockets Program’s manifest of core science missions.
13. Will the bidder be provided historical insight into the use of the PTO mechanism to fund support areas (e.g., financial, configuration management, machine shop)?

Response:  No Performance Task Orders will be issued to fund support for any of the requirements of SOW Section 1 with the exception of those that will be issued for the acquisition, receipt, inspection, test, and acceptance into inventory of program supplies; for the refurbishment of hardware, components, and standard subsystems as described in Section 1.2.5 of the SOW; and for Phase in (separate contract vehicle) and Phase out activities as described in SOW Sections 1.1.1.1 and 1.1.1.2 respectively.  The costs associated with all other requirements of SOW Section 1 are to be considered Program Management and Administrative Support expenses for the contract and allocated against Mission and Performance Task Orders in accordance with the contractor’s established accounting system.
14. In L13, Sub-factor C (top of page 119) the “accounting of accrued expenditures and other liabilities” is stated as required.  

What are the types of accrued expenditures and other liabilities for which we must account?

Response:  The types of accrued expenditures and other liabilities would include all direct and indirect allocable expenses by task order and reported in accordance with contract reporting requirements.  
15. L13, Sub-factor C (top of page 119) it is noted that the offeror must address “the level of effort that will be required by the government to extract and interpret the required information.”  

Please clarify how the contractor is to provide an estimate of the level of effort of a government performed activity.

Response:  The “…level of effort that will be required by the Government to extract and interpret the required information” will be changed to “…the amount of insight the Government will have to quickly extract and interpret the required information.”
16. In SOW 1.2.5, Government Property, (p. 28) it is noted that the contractor is responsible for providing “ all equipment calibrations….”  
Will calibration be performed by the WFF calibration contractor?  If so, will the calibration costs be paid by the government directly?  If not, will the government provide this cost as a plug number ODC and will it be accounted via a PTO?

Response:  The NSROC II contractor will be authorized to utilize the Wallops Calibration Laboratory to provide calibration services as necessary for implementation of the NSROC II contract; provided the required services are within the existing capabilities of the Wallops Calibration Laboratory.  Costs for these calibrations will be billed directly to the Government.  Any required calibration services that are outside the capabilities of the Wallops Calibration Laboratory will be the responsibility of the NSROC II contractor.  The costs for these additional calibration services should be reported as Program Management and Administrative Support expenses and allocated against Mission and Performance Task Orders in accordance with the contractor’s established accounting system.  The Government will not provide a cost plug number for the calibrations performed outside of the Wallops Calibration Laboratory.  SOW Section 1.2.5 will be updated to reflect the availability of Wallops Calibration Laboratory services to the NSROC II contractor.
17. Is the CWBS to follow the SOW explicitly or may the contractor identify our preferred method of organizing the work required?   If we may use such a non-SOW based WBS may we then bid the RTOs using that WBS, contrary to the current instructions? 

Response:  No, all Offerors shall use the CWBS as specified.
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